
   DeKalb County, Georgia 
  Voter Registration & Elections 

www.dekalbvotes.com  4380 Memorial Dr, Ste 300 
(404) 298-4020  Decatur, GA 30032-1239 

BOARD OF REGISTRATION AND ELECTIONS 
SCHEDULED MEETING 
December 11, 2023 9:00 AM VRE AB Area 

1. ROLL CALL 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. November 14, 2023 Scheduled Meeting 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

5. ELECTED OFFICIAL COMMENTS 

6. ITEMS FOR DECISION 
A. Certification of the December 5, 2023 General Municipal Election Runoff 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

8. BOARD COMMENTS 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


 

DeKalb County Board of Registration and Elections 

Meeting Minutes 
November 14, 2023  
Start Time: 12:10 p.m. 
End Time:  2:27 p.m. 
 
Board Attendees: Karli Swift, Chair 

Vasu Abhiraman, Vice-Chair 
Nancy Jester  
Anthony Lewis 
Susan Motter 

 
Other Attendees: Keisha Smith, Executive Director  

Terry Phillips, Deputy County Attorney 
   Bennett Bryan, Senior Assistant County Attorney 

Tristen Waite, Assistant County Attorney 
      
                                        
    

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Chair Swift called the Board of Voter Registration and Elections meeting to order at 12:10 p.m. Ms. Austin 
read the roll by calling each board member by name. All the members were present. A quorum was met. 
Motion to approve agenda by Ms. Jester, seconded by Mr. Lewis. The motion carried unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Ms. Austin read the rules for public comment: 

Public comments may be made in person or submitted by sending an email of one printed page or 
less at a minimum font of 12 to electionspubliccmnt@dekalbcountyga.gov which must be received 
between 35 and 5 minutes before the scheduled start of the meeting. The body of your email must 
include your first and last name. Abusive, profane, or derogatory language will not be permitted. 
By submitting an email for public comment, you agree to have your name and the email broadcast 
on the UStream and entered into the record and minutes. The DeKalb Board of Registration and 
Elections reserves the right, at the DeKalb Board of Registration and Elections’ sole discretion, to 
(1) add your email to the record/minutes without reading any of it into the broadcast or (2) read all 
or a portion of your email into the record/minutes. 

The following citizens provided public comment: 

• Liz Throop 
• Veronica Sciacca 
• Janet Grant 
• Gail Lee 
• Karen Davenport 
• Bill Henderson 



 

• Stephanie Ali 
• Karen McCowen 
• Online- Elizabeth Shakelford 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion by Ms. Motter, seconded by Vice-Chair Abhiraman, to approve the minutes of the October 12 
scheduled meeting and October 25 special called meeting. The motion carried unanimously. 

ITEMS FOR DECISION 

A) Certification of the November 7, 2023 General Municipal/Special Election 

Director Smith began by thanking VRE staff, poll workers and watchers, and other stakeholders 
throughout the county for all their work ensuring that the department was able to facilitate a smooth 
and accurate election. She discussed L&A activities and outlined the post-election internal auditing 
and canvassing process. Director Smith went on to review the post-election report that was included 
in the board materials. She also reported that voter experience surveys were piloted at multiple 
precincts and the vast majority of elector responses stated that voting was easy or extremely easy. 
Director Smith reiterated all the protocols and procedures that were followed in accordance with 
the Secretary of State and the guidance that was provided and stated that she was confident that 
there was an accurate tally of the results for each contest. 

Motion for approval of certification for purposes of discussion by Ms. Jester, seconded by Mr. 
Lewis.  

Ms. Jester asked Director Smith about circulating questions regarding inconsistencies of ballots 
cast. Director Smith clarified that ballots cast refers to the number of pages each ballot has and 
most of the ballots had two pages. Ms. Jester also asked about discrepancies of voter credits and 
received clarification that there were some sync differences with the poll pads, but it was never the 
case that any elector voted twice. Ms. Jester inquired about L&A testing, specifically updates to 
equipment after it has been deployed, and how the public is or should be noticed.  

Mr. Lewis asked Director Smith about a discrepancy in the total votes on the election summary. 
Director Smith advised that there was a typo on the election summary presentation and guided Mr. 
Lewis to the official summary report which showed the correct number.  

Ms. Motter asked about the differential between the registered voters and the total number of votes. 
Mr. Catherwood informed the Board that the differential is caused exclusively by the two-card 
ballot issue where a voter turned in one card, but not both.  

Vice-Chair Abhiraman asked for clarification on the cause of the two-page ballots. Director Smith 
replied that because of the positioning of the EHOST and SPLOST questions, most voters had two 
pages if they also had a municipal-level contest.  

The motion to certify the November 7, 2023 General Municipal/Special Election passed 3-2 with 
Ms. Jester and Mr. Lewis voting nay. 

Motion by Ms. Jester to recess to allow the Board to sign the certification paperwork for the 
election, seconded by Vice-Chair Abhiraman. The motion passed unanimously.  



 

Motion to reconvene by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Vice-Chair Abhiraman. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

B) Challenges Brought by Alice Wright 

Ms. Wright presented her case for the four (4) voter challenges she presented submitted on 
October 12, 2023. 
 
Director Smith stated that the VRE office mailed challenge letters to all addresses the registrants 
had on file. She mentioned that three (3) of the challenged voters requested absentee ballots on 
December 10, 2020, through the UOCAVA application to vote in the January 5, 2021, runoff 
election, however, no ballots were returned to receive credit. VRE staff reported that one (1) of 
the challenged voters had been canceled from the voter roll on March 2, 2017, but instructions 
from the Secretary of State’s office were received on September 30, 2019, to put her back on the 
voter roll.  
 
Chair Swift asked Ms. Wright if she had personal knowledge of any of the voters and if she lived 
at any of the addresses on record for them. Ms. Wright replied that she did not to both questions. 
Chair Swift asked Ms. Wright if she had any knowledge that the voters are not UOCAVA voters 
or voters that are able to vote as US citizens living abroad. Ms. Wright replied that she did not 
know about their UOCAVA eligibility but that she had a message from one of the challenged 
voters that they did not register to vote. Chair Swift then inquired about Ms. Wright’s concern of 
Ms. Sciacca receiving mail at her address for the challenged voters and stated that it was a 
process issue that could be corrected.  
 
Vice-Chair Abhiraman asked Ms. Wright if she was familiar with the limitations on notarizing 
documents as a qualified notary, as she notarized the affidavits from Ms. Sciacca for this 
challenge to which she is a party of the transaction. He also asked about her familiarity with 
UOCAVA eligibility and asked Ms. Wright if she has evidence that the voters are not eligible to 
vote under UOCAVA. Ms. Wright replied that she did not. Vice-Chair Abhiraman read from the 
US Election Assistance Commission fact sheet that overseas citizens may use the address they 
lived at immediately prior to leaving the United States and that they may remain valid even if; 
they no longer own property or have any other ties to that state, their intent to return to that state 
is uncertain, or if their previous address is no longer recognized as a residential address. He asked 
Director Smith if there was a process in place if the VRE office received contact from an elector 
stating that they did not want to be on the voter rolls, in which Director Smith replied that there 
was.  
 
Ms. Jester stated that while she understood and is sensitive to UOCAVA voters, it was clear that 
Ms. Sciacca’s home was continually occupied by her since 1985 and in 2012 and 2020 these 
electors somehow appeared on the voter rolls. She said that she hopes that the rolls can be cleaned 
up and thanked Ms. Wright for bringing her challenge to the Board. 
 
Mr. Lewis asked Ms. Wright if she was able to look at any of the voter records for the challenged 
voters. Ms. Wright confirmed that they had never voted but had an active status. He asked Ms. 
Wright if she knew when Ms. Sciacca contacted the VRE office regarding receiving mail for the 
voters and Ms. Wright replied that she did not know exactly but it had been over the years. Mr. 
Lewis asked Director Smith how a challenged voter’s address in Israel was obtained and Director 
Smith replied, from their voter registration and absentee ballot request, the federal post card 
application. He further confirmed with Director Smith their current mailing address was in Israel. 
 



 

Ms. Motter asked Ms. Wright if she knew that UOCAVA does not have a provision as to how far 
back in time an address can be used, and Ms. Wright replied that she was aware of that. She asked 
Ms. Wright if she was aware that the challenged voters registered under federal election years 
2012 and 2020 which appears more realistic for UOCAVA voters. Ms. Wright replied that she 
was aware but stated that they should not be receiving mail at Ms. Sciacca’s address. Ms. Motter 
then corrected the record by referencing a residency voter challenge the Board received on July 
18, 2022, submitted by Mr. Robert Smith that included all four (4) challenged voters as well as a 
Lauren Sciacca, all with the same residential address. The challenge was not sustained at that 
time. Ms. Motter thanked Ms. Wright for presenting her challenge and stated that it does point to 
process issues regarding mailing voters abroad.  
 
Motion to sustain the voter challenge by Ms. Jester and seconded by Mr. Lewis. The motion 
failed 2-3 with Chair Swift, Vice-Chair Abhiraman, and Ms. Motter voting nay. 
 

C) Advance Voting Times and Location | December Runoff 

Director Smith stated that 4 municipalities had runoffs and proposed an Advance Voting schedule 
beginning Sunday, November 26, 2023, and culminating on Friday, December 1, 2023. 

Ms. Motter asked Director Smith to identify which municipalities had runoffs. Director Smith 
stated that those municipalities were the City of Atlanta, the City of Brookhaven, the City of 
Doraville, and the City of Stonecrest. Ms. Motter asked about the Advance Voting site for the City 
of Doraville. Director Smith stated that each municipality was asked for options in their cities and 
Doraville responded that they did not have one.  

Motion to approve the Advance Voting schedule for the runoff by Vice-Chair Abhiraman and 
seconded by Ms. Jester. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

D) Poll Worker Application 

Chair Swift stated that the Board had been made aware that at some point a question appeared to 
have been added to the Dekalb County poll worker application asking the applicant for their 
political party affiliation. Chair Swift stated that this is inconsistent with poll worker applications 
across the metro counties and requested to have the question removed from the application.  

Ms. Jester noted that the question was added to the poll worker application prior to each member 
joining the board with the possible exception of Mr. Lewis.  

Mr. Lewis stated that he was not sure if it was prior to his service.  

Ms. Jester confirmed that Chair Swift’s request is to remove the question from the application.  

Motion to strike the question from the application for the purposes of discussion by Ms. Jester and 
seconded by Vice-Chair Abhiraman.  

Ms. Jester requested the data relating to poll worker party affiliation from the time the question was 
added on the application to date.  

Director Smith stated that the VRE staff was in the process of collecting that data, however, there 
were so many different ways that applications were submitted in the past. She stated that she had a 



 

snapshot of the information but due to the election, the staff had not yet been able to research this 
information in its entirety.  

Ms. Jester noted for the public that even though the question is asked on the application, information 
on voting records is disclosable and public information anyway. Ms. Jester asked the Board if they 
wanted to recalibrate the entire poll worker application given some of the information that is on 
applications for other metro counties.  

Chair Swift replied that her intention of bringing this to the Board was not to take away Director 
Smith’s administrative control over the application process but to specifically address this question.  

Ms. Motter requested that when Director Smith does provide the data around poll worker party 
affiliation, that it is presented blind and with no personally identifiable information of poll workers.  

Ms. Jester said that she did not want the information blind as it is disclosable.  

Ms. Motter expressed that her concern is the effect that publishing the information will have on 
poll worker retention and recruitment efforts.  

Ms. Jester said that she would like, to the fullest extent under the open records act, all the granularity 
that she can receive.  

The motion passed unanimously.  

E) 2024 Meeting Calendar 

Director Smith presented the proposed 2024 BRE meeting schedule, noting that the dates adhere to 
the regular Thursday schedule except for months with elections or the possibility of runoffs.  

Motion to approve the 2024 BRE meeting schedule by Mr. Lewis and seconded by Ms. Motter. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

A) Director’s Report 

Chair Swift asked Director Smith if there was a need to go over the Director’s Report as most of it had 
been covered in the Items for Decision. Director Smith replied that there was not, but that she did want 
to mention that the office received a request from a Stonecrest candidate for a recount, but they did not 
meet the threshold for the margin, so it was not granted. Director Smith stated that everything else could 
be discussed at the next meeting.  

B) December Meeting Schedule 

Director Smith stated that the GAVREO conference had been planned during the certification of the 
runoff election. As attendance is required, Director Smith asked the Board if they wanted to move the 
meeting time up to allow attendees to travel to the conference.  

Motion to reschedule the December meeting time to 9am by Mr. Lewis and seconded by Ms. Motter. 
The motion passed unanimously.  



 

ELECTED OFFICIAL COMMENTS 

Representative Saira Draper expressed her concerns that two Board members did not vote to certify the 
election. She stated that what she heard was the good work the DeKalb elections office did and that 
they were transparent and open about what went right and what went wrong. Ms. Draper further stated 
that the result of voting not to certify the election meant that those Board members did not have trust 
in this election, and it is something they are telling members of the County. 

BOARD COMMENTS 

Ms. Motter thanked the staff, Director Smith, and the poll workers for their work in the election and 
expressed appreciation to the staff who prepared the information for the voter challenge.  

Mr. Lewis said that one reason there is a Board and a panel of five (5) people is to achieve some level 
of balance and make sure that everyone in the county is represented. He said expecting that everyone 
in the county will think along the same lines is incorrect. Mr. Lewis stated that every member of the 
Board, including himself, works to do the best they can for the County. He said that he believes residents 
of the County have the right to act within their government and to speak to their officials when they 
feel that something is wrong. Mr. Lewis thanked the department for all the work they do. 

Ms. Jester thanked Representative Draper for being present and said that she wanted to address her 
concerns. She mentioned the issues with a Commission District 2 race and the measures that took place 
to mitigate the circumstances surrounding that race. Ms. Jester said that the process of L&A testing 
while an election is ongoing and the lack of notice to the public is a concern for her. She further stated 
that the difference and lack of correctly flowing information between the poll pads, epulse, and 
GARVIS was also an integrity issue for her. She thanked the public for their attendance, her fellow 
Board members, the staff, and Executive Director Smith.  

Vice-Chair Abhiraman thanked the department for all their hard work and each poll worker who worked 
the election and those that would be working the runoff. He also thanked the DeKalb County voters, 
especially those that turned out for this election.  

Chair Swift thanked the Board for their work and respect for everyone, the staff, and the community 
for their attendance.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Vice-Chair Abhiraman and seconded by Ms. Jester. The motion carried unanimously. 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:27 p.m. 



DeKalb County 
Voter Registration & Elections

Board of Registration and Elections
December 11, 2023

Keisha L. Smith, MPA
VRE Executive Director 



Key Priorities

Our key priorities center on enhancing the voter experience for all eligible voters in 
DeKalb County. We will work to ensure the integrity of our elections, improve 
operational efficiencies, enhance staff training for full-time and seasonal employees 
and integrate technology and innovation to better our processes and upgrade our 
voter experience. 

Technology & 
Innovation

Staff 
Training

Voter 
Experience 

Elections
Integrity

Operational 
Efficiency



Post-Election Report
December 5, 2023 General Municipal  Election Runoff



DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaTURNOUT

Registered Voters 73,076 (Active)

Ballots Cast 9,201
Overall Turnout 12.59%

Election Day 6,481 70.44%
Advance Voting 2,565 27.87%
Absentee by Mail 148 1.61%
Provisional 7 0.08%
Total 9,201 100.0%

Election 
Day

Advance 
Voting

Absentee by Mail

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaADVANCE VOTING

Lynwood Recreation 
Center was the most 
popular AV location, 
accounting for 56% of 
advance votes.

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaABSENTEE BY MAIL

Ballots Accepted 148
Domestic 147
Overseas 1

Rejected/Spoiled 4
Total Received 152

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaABSENTEE BY MAIL

Provisional Ballots
Missing ID 1
Total 1

Cured Provisional 0

Rejected Ballots
No DOB 1
No DOB/ID 1
Invalid DOB 1
Total 3

Cured Rejected 0

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaELECTION DAY

Election Day voting reached a new 
high, surpassing 2011 turnout

2011 2015 2019 2023

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaELECTION DAY

Precincts 34
Polling Places 26
Poll Workers 214
Equipment Tested & Deployed
Poll Pads 52
Touchscreens 234
Scanners 26

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaELECTION DAY PROVISIONALS

Accepted Rejected Total
Out of Precinct 7 0 7
Registration in Question 0 1 1
Total 7 1 8

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, GeorgiaCOUNTY PARTNERS

VRE received support from extended team 
members across the county:

DCTV Facilities Finance
GIS IT Law
Libraries Marshals Parks
Public Safety Schools

…and more

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


DeKalbVotes.com (404) 298-4020

Voter Registration & Elections
DeKalb County, Georgia

http://www.dekalbvotes.com/


Candidate Party Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Alfred "Shivy" Brooks 1,213 331 17 2 1,563 71.99%
Tamara Jones (I) 499 89 20 0 608 28.01%
Total Votes 1,712 420 37 2 2,171

Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Election Day Advance Voti Absentee by Provisional Total
Times Cast 1,713 421 37 2 2,173 / 29,008 7.49%

Precincts Reported: 14 of 14 (100.00%)

Board of Education Member, District 7 (At Large) (Vote for  1) 

Candidate Party Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Lauren Kiefer 1,688 805 27 5 2,525 41.47%
H.J. "John" Park 2,371 1,163 30 0 3,564 58.53%
Total Votes 4,059 1,968 57 5 6,089

Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Election Day Advance Voti Absentee by Provisional Total
Times Cast 4,072 1,974 57 5 6,108 / 31,386 19.46%

Precincts Reported: 14 of 14 (100.00%)

Mayor -  Brookhaven (Vote for  1) 

Precincts Reported: 34 of 34 (100.00%)
Registered Voters: 9,201 of 73,076 (12.59%)
Ballots Cast: 9,201

Election Summary Report

DeKalb

Official and Complete
December 05, 2023

General Election

Elector Group Counting Group Ballots Voters Registered Voters Turnout
Total Election Day 6,481 6,481 8.87%

Advance Voting 2,565 2,565 3.51%
Absentee by Mail 148 148 0.20%
Provisional 7 7 0.01%
Total 9,201 9,201 73,076 12.59%

12/9/2023 1:03:33 PMPage: 1 of 2



Candidate Party Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Michael Diaz 991 481 8 0 1,480 52.74%
Linley Jones (I) 865 450 11 0 1,326 47.26%
Total Votes 1,856 931 19 0 2,806

Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Election Day Advance Voti Absentee by Provisional Total
Times Cast 1,904 936 19 0 2,859 / 10,607 26.95%

Precincts Reported: 5 of 5 (100.00%)

Brookhaven City Council, District 1 (Vote for  1)  

Candidate Party Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Carrie Armistead 236 37 6 0 279 54.39%
MD Naser 173 20 41 0 234 45.61%
Total Votes 409 57 47 0 513

Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Election Day Advance Voti Absentee by Provisional Total
Times Cast 409 57 47 0 513 / 4,172 12.30%

Precincts Reported: 3 of 3 (100.00%)

Doraville City Council, District 2 Post 2 (Vote for  1)  

Candidate Party Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Terry Fye 213 84 4 0 301 74.32%
Rob Turner (I) 73 28 3 0 104 25.68%
Total Votes 286 112 7 0 405

Election Day Advance 
Voting

Absentee by 
Mail

Provisional Total

Election Day Advance Voti Absentee by Provisional Total
Times Cast 287 113 7 0 407 / 8,510 4.78%

Precincts Reported: 6 of 6 (100.00%)

Stonecrest City Councilmember, District Post 2   (Vote for  1)  

12/9/2023 1:03:33 PMPage: 2 of 2


	1- BRE Agenda 2023-12-11
	2- BRE- 11.14.23 Minutes_Draft
	Approval Of Agenda
	Public Comments
	Approval of Minutes
	items for decision
	items for discussion
	elected official ComMENTS
	Board ComMENTS
	Adjournment

	3-DeKalb Post-Election Report 2023-12-05
	DeKalb County �Voter Registration & Elections
	Slide Number 2
	Post-Election Report
	Turnout
	Advance Voting
	Absentee By Mail
	Absentee By Mail
	Election Day
	Election Day
	Election Day Provisionals
	County Partners
	Slide Number 12

	4- ElectionSummaryReportRPT 12-09 13-03 Official



